
What: Operations Committee Meeting 
When: October 28, 2021; 12:30-1:30 p.m. PST 
Where: Zoom Meeting  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83535485576?pwd=M0ZrZ1MvR01PdXdDeE96SURYVkF0Zz09 
Dial by your location: 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) or 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
Meeting ID: 835 3548 5576  Passcode: 821295 

To register for the meeting, please review the Public Comment Protocol then email wvameetings@wavaccine.org at 
least two business days in advance of the meeting. 

WVA Agendas are subject to revision up to and including the time of the meeting. 

Agenda for Operations Committee Meeting 

Approx. Time Page* Topic/[Anticipated Action] Presented 
by: 

12:30-12:35 
p.m.

1. Introductions & Purpose of Meeting
a. Notice of Recording
b. Survey of Other Topics

J. Zell

12:35-12:40 
p.m. * Pg. 3-5

2. Calendar Consent Items (VOTE)
a. Operations Committee Minutes (April 29, 2021)

J. Zell

12:40-1:20 
p.m. * Pg. 6

* Pg. 7-16
* Pg. 17-26

3. Operations Updates
a. Revised Charter Review (VOTE)
b. Plan of Operation Updates
c. Key Indicators
d. Payer Compliance
e. DOH Provider Network TIN
f. Provider Compliance

J. Zell/P.
Miller

1:20-1:30 p.m. 4. Other Matters from Committee Members Any 

1:30 p.m. 5. Closing J. Zell

*Indicates Agenda Item Attached

Notice:  The meeting may be recorded for the benefit of the minute-taker. The WVA intends to delete the recording after 
the minutes are approved.

Meeting Packet Page 1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83535485576?pwd=M0ZrZ1MvR01PdXdDeE96SURYVkF0Zz09
https://wavaccine.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/02/Public-Comment-Protocol_Effective-2021-02-05.pdf
mailto:wvameetings@wavaccine.org


 

 

October 28, 2021 

WVA Meeting of the Operations Committee 

Proposed Form of Votes 

 

 
 

Items under Agenda Section 2: 
  
VOTED: To approve April 29, 2021 meeting minutes.  

 
[To approved April 29, 2021 meeting with the changes suggested at the 
meeting.] 

 
 
Items under Agenda Section 3: 
 

VOTED: To approve changes to the Operations Committee Charter.  
 
[To approve changes to the Operations Committee Charter with the 
additional changes suggested at the meeting.] 

 
 

The following are suggested forms of votes only. They are intended to be an aid to 
facilitate work by individual directors and committee members.   

 

 
Meeting Packet Page 2



 

WVA Operations Committee Meeting – April 29, 2021  Page 1 of 3 

Washington Vaccine Association 1 
Operations Committee Meeting 2 

April 29, 2021; 12:30-1:30 p.m. PT 3 
 4 

I. Attendance.  Participating in all or part of the meeting by telephone were the following individuals: 5 
 

Members 
 Tracy Cardillo, Cigna 
 Cathy Falanga, Aetna 
 Sue Bride, Premera 
 Susan Comers, Aetna 
 Kristi Severson, Kaiser 
 
 WVA 
 Julia G. Zell, Esq., Executive Director, 

Chair 
 

 Helms & Company, Inc. 
 Patrick Miller, Administrative Director 

Lisa White, Customer and Financial Support 
Specialist 
Leslie Walker, CPA, Mason+Rich, PA 
Alyssa McKeon, Project Support Leader 
 
Others 
Anne Redman, Esq., Perkins Coie, LLP 
Tawnya Flyberg, Premera 

  
 6 
II. Welcome and Introductions 7 
At 12:30 p.m., Chairperson Julia Zell called the meeting to order. Ms. Zell provided a notice of recording. Mr. Miller 8 
introduced the attending staff members from Helms.  9 
 10 
Calendar Consent Items 11 
Ms. Zell directed the Committee’s attention to the calendar consent items. There being no questions or comments, the 12 
following item was put to a vote: 13 
 14 

Upon motion duly made and seconded, it was unanimously 15 
 16 
 VOTED: To approve October 29, 2020 meeting minutes. 17 

 18 
III. 2021-22 Vaccine Assessment Grid 19 
Mr. Miller reviewed the presentation materials regarding the 2021-22 Vaccine Assessment Grid (“Grid”) development 20 
process and recommendations. All the information shared during Mr. Miller’s presentation is available in the meeting 21 
packet published online at www.wavaccine.org including: slides, proposed 2021-22 Grid, and summary memo.  22 
 23 
Ms. Zel explained that the WVA’s overall recommendation this year is that the 2021-22 Grid amounts should stay the 24 
same as the current, 2020-21 Grid to provide stable pricing, which should result in a reduction of liquidity but maintain 25 
adequate reserves in accordance with Board-approved goals. By keeping the Vaccine Assessment Grid stable, the 26 
WVA is absorbing the CDC price change as part of a larger plan to reduce the WVA cash balance over the next few 27 
years.  28 
 29 
Mr. Miller reviewed the Washington Department of Health’s (DOH) projections, including the pandemic’s impact on 30 
the WVA. Doses ordered by providers fell, but are beginning to recover as uptake rises. The DOH’s SFY22 projections 31 
assume a 5% overall reduction in vaccine doses ordered with a full, pre-pandemic-level recovery in SFY23. VFC-32 
eligible Medicaid enrollment for Washington children under 19 has increased between April to December 2020. The 33 
DOH’s contingency fund projections for COVID-19 vaccines were adjusted by 3% for SFY22 and SFY23 and will 34 
be monitored. Two new vaccines are being added to the 2021-22 Grid: MenQuadfi is expected to be released in May 35 
2021 to replace Menactra and Vaxelis is expected to be released in July 2021 to be offered as an alternative to several 36 
combinations of vaccines.  37 
 38 
Mr. Miller reviewed the cash flow model assumptions for FY2022 through FY2024 that are factored into the model 39 
that help the WVA determine the Vaccine Assessment Grid. He then reviewed the 2021-22 Grid and communications 40 
rollout plan. On the proposed 2021-22 Grid, last year’s prices are in the green shaded column and the coming year’s 41 

 
Meeting Packet Page 3

http://www.wavaccine.org/


 

WVA Operations Committee Meeting – April 29, 2021  Page 2 of 3 

prices are in the salmon shaded column. No CPT codes have been removed from the Grid, and the added codes for 1 
MenQuadfi and Vaxelis are noted. The Vaccine Assessment Grid will be posted to the website tomorrow pending the 2 
approval of the Operations Committee today. Following that posting, emails, and physical letters will be sent to payers 3 
and providers as detailed in the presentation.  4 
 5 
Ms. Zell asked if anyone had comments or questions. Ms. Falanga asked if Mr. Miller was sure the WVA would have 6 
the codes for the new vaccines in time for posting the 2021-22 Grid. Mr. Miller shared that amounts for the two, new 7 
codes have been established based upon information already provided by the DOH and have been loaded into the 8 
underlying model  9 
 10 
There being no additional questions or comments, the following items were put to a vote: 11 
 12 

Upon motion duly made and seconded, it was unanimously 13 
 14 
 VOTED: To approve the 2021-22 Vaccine Assessment Grid as presented.  15 

 16 
IV. Plan of Operations Changes 17 
Ms. Zell reviewed a proposed change to the Plan of Operations that would clarify the Interest and Late Assessments 18 
provision. A concern had been previously raised at the Board of Directors meeting as to the date from which the 19 
dosage-based assessment (DBA) would be deemed late, and the Board asked the Operations Committee to review the 20 
provision. The draft Plan of Operations lists the triggering event as date of service as that is the data available to the 21 
WVA, versus the date received by the payer, which is unknown to the WVA. Ms. Zell proposed that the time frame 22 
be changed from 90 days to 180 days from date of service to ensure fairness to the Payer.  23 
 24 
Ms. Falanga provided context as to the concern. Payers do not have control over when the provider submits the DBA 25 
to the payer. She proposed date of submission as the triggering event. Ms. Falanga understood that the WVA has 26 
limited access to the necessary data and suggested that good faith language should be added. Ms. Comers agreed that 27 
she has concerns with the terms as presented in the draft. Ms. Bride agreed that payers should not be penalized when 28 
providers do not submit the in a DBA timely manner and added that some provider contracts allow for a year 29 
submission of medical claim (or in this case, DBAs). 30 
 31 
The Committee discussed how the WVA might proceed when they encounter a payer that is non-responsive to WVA 32 
inquiries resulting in  the WVA being unable to confirm date of submission. A suggestion was made to adjust the 33 
language and have a penalty applied to the payer that is retroactive to the date of service when a data request from the 34 
WVA is denied or ignored. The Committee further discussed the appropriate responsiveness time period. Ms. Redman 35 
suggested language that recognizes that if the payer had not received the DBA from the provider than the penalty does 36 
not apply. She also reminded the Committee that if the WVA was having difficulties engaging with a payer that the 37 
next step would be to raise the issue to the DOH for further penalties per the governing statute. Ms. Bride agreed that 38 
the 180-day time period combined with the opportunity to show if a provider has not submitted the DBA was 39 
reasonable. Ms. Redman agreed that the language could be simplified. Ms. Zell confirmed the next steps were to draft 40 
the language, share the revised language with the Committee via email, and to bring the final Plan of Operations to 41 
the June 17, 2021 Board meeting.  42 
 43 
V. Operations Update 44 
Ms. Zell shared the development of the payer checklist with the Committee. The checklist is intended to cover the 45 
most common issues that payers encounter to remain in compliance. Mr. Miller reviewed the materials that payers 46 
and providers would be receiving as part of the 2021-22 Vaccine Assessment Grid communication package. The 47 
packaged will be both emailed and mailed.  48 
 49 
Mr. Miller reviewed a sampling of key performance indicators (KPIs) including FY21 planned-to-actual cash, vaccine 50 
expenditures, DOH remittances, website utilization, correspondence receipts, and payer refunds. These KPIs are 51 
presented monthly to the Board.   52 

 
Meeting Packet Page 4



WVA Operations Committee Meeting – April 29, 2021 Page 3 of 3

1 
Mr. Miller noted an additional change in the Plan of Operations regarding the third-party administrator (TPA) 2 
reporting requirements. Currently, only TPAs need to register with the WVA and the registration page asks for an 3 
executive contact and an administrative contact. The new Plan of Operations changes these to a primary and secondary 4 
compliance contact to better support communication and compliance. Ultimately, the goal is to have all payers register 5 
their contact information instead of the current structure that only collects TPA contact information. 6 

7 
Ms. Zell previewed the new, WVA brochure which is a key part of a larger communication project to create legacy 8 
and introduction pieces that build the understanding of the WVA across our audiences. Ms. Zell encouraged 9 
Committee members to email her with feedback or thoughts. 10 

11 
VIII. Other Matters from Committee Members12 

13 
None. 14 

15 
IX. Closing 16 
The meeting adjourned at 1:30 pm PT. 17 

Meeting Packet Page 5



Washington Vaccine Association – Operations Committee Charter – adopted _______. 
Page 1 of 1 
Updated 10.20.2021 
153960817.1 
154291429.1 

WASHINGTON VACCINE ASSOCIATION 
OPERATIONS COMMITTEE CHARTER 

Purpose 
The purpose of the Operations Committee (the Committee) of the board of directors (the Board) of 
the Washington Vaccine Association (the Association) is to provide advice on and recommend to 
the Board the assessment amounts for the specific vaccines dosages administered by providers in 
the Washington State Childhood Vaccine Program, to advise the Board on and to advise the Board 
on the DBA submission process, on compliance matters and on other matters referred to the 
Committee from time to time. 

Meetings and Notice: 

The Committee shall meet as frequently as needed to fulfill its charter and to address matters on its 
agenda, but not less frequently than two times per year. The Committee may, but shall not be 
required, to establish a regularly scheduled time and place for meetings.  Notice of meetings shall 
be as required and set forth in the Association bylaws for Board meetings.  Committee members 
are required to attend meetings in person, by conference telephone, or by video conference.  

Membership: 
The members of the Committee shall include two voting members of the Board, the Executive 
Director of the Association as an ex officio non-voting member of the Committee, and such other 
members as shall be as appointed by the Board. The Chair of the Committee shall be the Executive 
Director. 

Quorum; Voting: 
A quorum for a meeting of the Committee shall consist of a majority of the members.  The vote of 
a majority of the members of the committee present at a meeting at which a quorum is present 
shall be sufficient to approve a proposed action. 

Independent Advice; Engagement of Consultants:   
In discharging its responsibilities, the Committee shall have access to any relevant books, records, 
facilities, and personnel of the Association.   The Committee, upon approval of the Board or 
Executive Committee, and at the Association’s expense, may obtain advice and assistance from 
outside consultants to advise the Committee.   The Committee may also request that the Executive 
Director, the Administrator of the Association, the Association’s outside counsel, or any other 
person meet with any members of, or consultants to the Committee, or provide other assistance to 
the Committee in the discharge of its duties. 

Meeting Packet Page 6



 

 
 
Washington Vaccine Association Amended and Restated Plan of Operation Page 1 of 10  
 

WASHINGTON VACCINE ASSOCIATION 

AMENDED AND RESTATED PLAN OF OPERATION 

WHEREAS, the Washington State Universal Childhood Vaccine Program operated by the 
Washington State Department of Health provides vaccines to children less than 19 years of age resident in 
Washington (the “Program”); 

WHEREAS, the Washington legislature has enacted SSHB 2551, Ch. 174, 61st Leg., 2010 Reg. Sess. 
(Wash. 2010) (the “Act”), now codified as Chapter 70.290 RCW, establishing a mechanism to assess insurers 
and third-party administrators for the costs of vaccines provided to certain children in Washington in 
support of the Program; 

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes the formation of a not-for-profit corporation known as the 
Washington Vaccine Association (the “Association”); 

WHEREAS, the Association is governed by a Board of Directors (the “Board”); 

WHEREAS, as required by the Act, the Board has adopted a plan of operation dated May 10, 2010, 
which plan has been amended and restated in form approved by the Secretary of the Department of Health 
(the “Secretary”) on April 11, 2013, and on February 21, 2019; 

WHEREAS, the Association desires to amend and restate the plan, subject to approval by the 
Secretary; 

WHEREAS, the Association has members (“Members”) consisting of (i) all health carriers issuing or 
renewing health benefit plans in Washington state; and (ii) all third-party administrators as defined in the 
Act (“TPAs”) conducting business on behalf of residents of Washington state or Washington health care 
providers and facilities (collectively, the “Payers”); 

RESOLVED that the Board hereby adopts the following plan as required by the Act. 

ARTICLE I 
Effective Date; Amendment 

This Amended and Restated Plan of Operation and any amendments to same as may be approved 
from time to time by the Board (the “Plan”) shall become effective upon the approval of the Secretary.  
Amendments may include a retroactive effective date if such date is proposed in the amendments and 
approved by the Secretary.  The completion of any blanks in the exhibits will not constitute an amendment 
to this Plan, but the change in the structure or substance of any exhibit will be considered an amendment 
requiring approval.  

 
Meeting Packet Page 7



 

 
 
Washington Vaccine Association Amended and Restated Plan of Operation Page 2 of 10  
 

ARTICLE II 
Conformity to Act, Articles and Bylaws; 

Limitation of Liability; Priority of Documents 

A. The Association shall perform its functions under this Plan and in accordance with the Act, which 
is hereby incorporated as part of this Plan.  The provisions of the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws 
of the Association, as amended from time to time, are incorporated in this Plan by reference.  

B. The liability of the Association, its members, directors, officers, employees and agents, and of 
health care providers arising from the lawful performance of their duties or required activities under the Act 
shall be limited as provided in the Act,1 and further limited as provided in the Articles of Incorporation and 
Bylaws of the Association, as amended from time to time.  The Association is governed by the above 
referenced documents together with the Policies as described in Article X.  In the event of any conflict 
between these documents, the order of priority of authority shall be as follows:  The Act, Articles of 
Incorporation, Bylaws, this Plan, and the Policies. 

ARTICLE III 
Management of the Association and its Assets 

A.  The Board may select and employ an Executive Director to be responsible for the 
administration and conduct of the business and affairs of the corporation pursuant to guidance established 
by the Board, from time to time.  The Executive Director shall have the full authority necessary for direction 
and conduct of the affairs of the Association.  The Association may have such additional employees as the 
Board of Directors shall approve. 

B. The Board may select and contract with one or more third parties for services needed to 
administer the affairs of the Association and to implement the functions contemplated by this Plan. 

ARTICLE IV 
Public Awareness 

The Board may establish and maintain public awareness of the Association through development 
of a website containing basic descriptive data and downloadable copies of the Association’s Articles and 
Bylaws, together with this Plan and such other information as the Board or the Executive Director may 
determine to be helpful or necessary from time to time.  If, in the judgment of the Board, additional efforts 
are required to establish and maintain public awareness of the Association and understanding of its purpose 
and functions, the Board shall be authorized to undertake such additional efforts.   

ARTICLE V 
Administrative Expenses; Accounting; Financial Reporting 

A. Financial and Other Records.  Monthly, quarterly and annual financial records shall be 
maintained and distributed by the Executive Director in accordance with the schedule set forth in Exhibit A.  
The quarterly report information shall include rolling forward-looking cash flow projections suitable to assist 
the Board in assuring adequacy of funds for future vaccine purchases and revising its assessment levels 
from time to time. 

B. Annual Association Audit.  The Association shall retain an independent certified public 
accounting (“CPA”) firm to conduct an annual audit of the financial statements of the Association.  The audit 
                                                 
1 See, for example, Sec. 8 of the Act. 

 
Meeting Packet Page 8



 

 
 
Washington Vaccine Association Amended and Restated Plan of Operation Page 3 of 10  
 

shall be conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, and an opinion shall be 
rendered by the CPA firm as to whether the Association’s financial statements are fairly stated in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles.  In conjunction with the annual audit, the CPA firm shall 
produce a management letter for the benefit of the Board.  The results of the annual audit, together with 
the management letter, shall be presented to the Board’s audit committee and forwarded to the entire 
Board.  The CPA firm selected by the Association must be authorized to provide accounting services in the 
State of Washington. 

C. Budgeting.  The Executive Director shall draft an annual expense budget for review, 
modification as deemed necessary or appropriate, and approval by the Board prior to the commencement 
of each fiscal year.  The Board shall assure that adequate internal control policies and procedures with 
respect to the handling of Association assets and liabilities by the Executive Director including but not 
limited to, cash, cash receipts, cash disbursements, assessments, investments, accounts payable, and 
administrative expenses, are in place, and may, in its discretion, at any time, engage the CPA firm to review 
such policies and procedures. 

D. Bank Accounts.  Money and marketable securities shall be kept in bank accounts and 
investment accounts as approved by the Board.  The Association shall deposit receipts and make 
disbursements from these accounts.  All bank accounts/checking accounts shall be established in the name 
of the Association and shall be approved by the Board members.  Authorized check signers shall be 
approved by the Board.   

E. Examination and Annual Report.  The Association shall be subject to examination by the 
Secretary.  The Board shall submit to the Secretary each year, not later than 120 days after the Association’s 
fiscal year, a financial report and a report of its activities during the preceding fiscal year as required by the 
Act. 

ARTICLE VI 
Assessment Plan 

A. Dosage-Based Assessment.  Because the Act contemplates an assessment methodology 
based on each Payer’s actual use of vaccines (RCW 70.290.040(3)) and a payment plan (RCW 
70.290.030(5)(n)), the Association has adopted a dosage-based assessment methodology (“DBA”) further 
described on Exhibit B.  Following Board vote of approval of DBA amounts as described in Section B of this 
Article, all Payers shall timely pay the Association all such assessments in accordance with the DBA amounts 
in effect, unless the Association has specifically agreed in advance with a Payer to an alternative payment 
method.  The DBA is not a medical claim.  Payment of any DBA within the timeframe applicable under 
Washington State law to a medical claim will be deemed timely payment. 

B. Assessment Grid.  The Association has posted to its public website a grid of assessment 
amounts (“Assessment Grid”), by vaccine, to be applied to DBA transactions.  From time to time, the 
Association will update the Assessment Grid as needed to assure that adequate funds, in aggregate, are 
available each month for transfer to the State’s universal payment vaccination account for timely payment 
of invoices arising from the State’s purchase of vaccines for which the Association is charged to provide 
funding under the Act.  The Association will provide notice to its known Members of any revision to the 
assessment amounts and such assessment revisions will be posted to the Association’s website at least sixty 
(60) days prior to the effective date of the revisions. 

 
Meeting Packet Page 9



 

 
 
Washington Vaccine Association Amended and Restated Plan of Operation Page 4 of 10  
 

ARTICLE VII 
Member Audits; Interest and Late Assessments; 

Calculation of Penalty; Collection 

A. Member Audits.  An audit of a Member’s compliance with obligations under the Act 
requires a majority vote of the Board or request of the Secretary.  The Association may audit compliance 
when a Member (i) fails to respond fully to any written request authorized by the Board for information 
concerning such Member’s reporting for assessment purposes; a response is timely if made within forty-
five (45) days after the date the request is mailed, postage pre-paid; or (ii) refuses to comply with the DBA 
without prior written approval by the Board of an alternative payment method.  Any Member so audited 
shall reimburse the costs of such audit as required by the Act and this Plan within forty-five (45) days of the 
Board mailing, postage pre-paid, the Member notice that the Board has certified the audit costs.  Upon 
failure of any such Member that has been audited to reimburse the costs of such audit, the Association shall 
provide notification to the Secretary of the unpaid costs due. 

B.  Interest and Late Assessments.  Assessments shall be due and deemed late if not paid 
within one hundred and eighty (180) days following the date of service of the vaccine. The Association may 
charge interest on assessments (or portion thereof) not paid when due after providing notice to the Member 
liable for payment of such delinquent assessment(s) that interest will be charged on delinquent 
assessments.  The notice shall identify the delinquent assessments by reference to the applicable date or 
dates of service or by other reasonable methods. Interest on delinquent assessments shall be charged from 
the date of such notice to the Member on the total of delinquent assessments at the rate of twelve percent 
(12%) per annum. Provided further that if the Member has not received the assessment or assessments at 
issue during the one hundred and eighty (180) day period following the date of service and so informs the 
Association within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Association’s notice of interest to be charged, the 
Association shall delay charging interest from the date of notice until such time as the Member has received 
the assessment or assessments and can make payment (“the Delayed Interest Accrual Date”). Upon failure 
of a Member to make payment within ninety (90) days of the date of such notice, or the Delayed Interest 
Accrual Date, the Association shall send notification to the Secretary of the total unpaid assessment amount, 
the notice date for interest accrual, the Delayed Interest Accrual Date if applicable, and the amount accruing 
interest.   

C. Calculation of Civil Penalties.  Upon receipt of notification from the Association pursuant 
to this Article, the Secretary shall calculate the civil penalty amount and assess a civil penalty against any 
Member as required by RCW 70.290.060.   

D. Collection.  The Association may separately pursue collection of amounts past due as may 
be authorized by the Board. 

ARTICLE VIII 
Remittance to Universal Vaccine Purchase Account 

The Association shall remit its assessment receipts, less the Association’s administrative costs and 
any reserves set by the Board from time to time, to the credit of the universal vaccine purchase account 
(“UVPA”) established pursuant to RCW 43.70.720.  Funds transferred to the UVPA shall be delivered on a 
“just-in-time” basis in order to support the assessment collection process and to enable the Association to 
gain as much interest income as reasonably possible through its collection process to help offset its costs 
of administration.  The Secretary or the Secretary’s designee can request, and the Association shall promptly 
provide, information on the Association’s accounts balances at any time. The Association shall promptly 
respond to any inquiry of the Secretary concerning the availability and timely transfer of funds, enabling 

 
Meeting Packet Page 10



 

 
 
Washington Vaccine Association Amended and Restated Plan of Operation Page 5 of 10  
 

the Secretary to make payment of the Association’s share under the Act for vaccine purchases made by the 
State of Washington. 

ARTICLE IX 
Disputes 

A. Member Appeal of Disputes to Board.  Members may request permission to appear 
before the Board at any time in connection with any dispute with the Association relating to an assessment 
or assessment reconciliation.  No request or appeal relating to assessments shall be heard until the 
protesting party has paid the assessment in full.   

B. Arbitration.  All disputes and differences that cannot be agreed upon by the parties will 
be decided by arbitration.  The arbitrator(s) will have the authority to interpret this Plan and, in doing so, 
shall consider the customs and practices of the insurance industry.  The arbitration shall be conducted under 
the auspices of the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its commercial arbitration rules.  
Such arbitration shall be held in Seattle, Washington.  This agreement to arbitrate shall be enforceable and 
judgment upon any award may be entered in any court having jurisdiction, which the parties hereby 
stipulate and agree, will include any court of appropriate subject matter jurisdiction located within the state 
of Washington.  Reasonable costs of arbitration shall be borne equally by the parties, and each party shall 
pay the cost of its own personnel and counsel involved in such proceedings. 

ARTICLE X 
Board Policies 

The Board may from time to time adopt and post to the Association website one or more policies 
(“Policies”).  Such Policies shall govern the operation of the Association from and after the date of such 
posting, subject to further amendment by the Board from time to time. 

ARTICLE XI 
Health Information 

 A. Authority of the Association.  The Association, including its authorized subcontractors, 
will receive and use certain health information of individuals to whom a vaccine is administered and for 
which an assessment is collected by the Association as provided by the Act and this Plan.  The Association 
receives and collects such information pursuant to the grant of authority and direction of the Act as part of 
the public health activities constituting the Program and solely for such purpose.  For clarity, no personal or 
health information of individuals (including “protected health information” as defined by the HIPAA 
administrative simplification rules) is or shall be obtained from or disclosed to the Department of Health in 
connection with the activities of the Association and operation of the Program.    

 B. Compliance with Health Information Privacy and Security Laws.  As required by 
applicable federal and state law, including the Act, the Association will preserve and protect the privacy and 
security of individual health information that the Association receives and uses in the course of carrying out 
its statutory purpose, including without limitation maintaining appropriate privacy and security policies and 
procedures, and agreements with the Association’s contractors, subcontractors and associates to preserve 
the privacy and security of the health information of individuals.   

ARTICLE XII 
Agreements with Other States 

 
Meeting Packet Page 11



Washington Vaccine Association Amended and Restated Plan of Operation Page 6 of 10  

Subject to approvals of the Secretary and the Board, the Association may from time to time (a) enter 
into one or more agreements with states other than Washington or vaccine funding organizations in such 
other states to address the needs of Washington resident children who receive vaccines in such other states 
and/or (b) make payments for vaccines for such children as requested by the Secretary.  Such agreements 
may also address assessment equity and seek to minimize the risk of duplicate assessments for childhood 
vaccines.  Payments under this Article or pursuant to agreements it authorizes shall be considered as vaccine 
costs in determining the assessments needed by the Association. 

ARTICLE XIII 
TPA Registration 

Each TPA Member shall provide the data elements identified in Exhibit C to the Association by 
making an initial filing when first becoming a Member, using such web-based tools as shall be offered by 
the Association and, thereafter, review and update any information so filed with the Association within ten 
(10) days of the date of change in the data previously filed by the Member.  Exhibit C may be modified
from time to time by the Association but not more frequently than annually.  The Association shall undertake
reasonable efforts to make available, generally 24/7 apart from periodic maintenance and backup, a web-
based tool which enables TPAs to check and update their Exhibit C information on file with the Association.

In accordance with the Act, the foregoing Plan, as amended, is approved by the Secretary of Health. 

By: Dated: 

Umair A. Shah, MD, MPH, Secretary of Health 
Washington Department of Health 

 
Meeting Packet Page 12



 

 
 
Washington Vaccine Association Amended and Restated Plan of Operation Page 7 of 10  
 

Exhibit A 
Schedule of Financial Statements 

Financial Statements will be released on the following schedule: 

1. Monthly Statements:  To the Treasurer and the Chairman of the Board fifteen (15) business 
days after the close of each month. 

2. Quarterly Statements:  To the full Board twenty-five (25) business days after the close of 
each quarter. 

3. Annual Statements:  Management’s statements will be ready for internal review sixty (60) 
business days after the close of the year; full statements will be released to the public as 
soon as the audit has been completed and the audit report accepted by the Board. 

Bank and Investment Statements.  Reconciled bank statements will be sent to the Finance Committee 
fifteen (15) business days after the close of each month.  Investment statements will be sent to the 
Finance Committee within fifteen (15) business days after the close of each quarter.  Both the reconciled 
bank statements and the investment statements shall be made available upon request to all Board 
members.

 
Meeting Packet Page 13



 

 
 
Washington Vaccine Association Amended and Restated Plan of Operation Page 8 of 10  
 

Exhibit B 
Washington Vaccine Association Dosage Based Assessment Methodology 

Pursuant to Chapter 70.290 RCW, the Association collects and remits funds from health carriers and 
third-party administrators (collectively, the “Payers”) for the cost of vaccines provided to covered children 
in Washington state.  The Association has developed a dosage-based assessment (“DBA”) method that uses 
a process similar to medical claims submissions to assess Payers for vaccines administered by providers to 
children who are Covered Lives of the Payers.  “Covered Lives” has the meaning defined in Chapter 
70.290.010 RCW.  Providers administering vaccines to Covered Lives are required to submit a claim to the 
applicable Payer for administration of the vaccine and to submit separately a form (in claims format) 
complete with the billing code(s) for the vaccine(s) administered, the current vaccine assessment amount, 
the Association’s federal tax identifier and NPI (national provider identification) number, and other typical 
claim form information (date, patient, payer and provider information, etc.) 

The provider is paid by the applicable Payer for the claim for vaccine administration. 

Each DBA form sent by providers generates payment by the applicable Payer to the Association in 
the amount of the DBA assessment.  Per-vaccine DBA assessment amounts are established and published 
to the Association as referenced in Article V1 Section B. 

 
Meeting Packet Page 14



 

 
 
Washington Vaccine Association Amended and Restated Plan of Operation Page 9 of 10  
 

Exhibit C 
TPA Data Elements 

for 
Web-based TPA Registration with the Washington Vaccine Association 

Pursuant to this Plan, TPAs are required to maintain current information with the Washington Vaccine 
Association (“WVA”) on the following data elements: 

A. TPA name and address 
(to identify the entity and provide basic corporate or other business contact information) 
1. TPA legal name. 
2. Alternative or d/b/a name(s), if any. 
3. Mailing Address: 

a. Address line 1 
b. Address line 2 
c. City 
d. State 
e. Zip 

4. NAIC and Group #s, if any. 
5. Federal Tax ID number. 
6. State or jurisdiction of legal formation/incorporation. 

 
B.  Primary Regulatory/Compliance Contact 

(contact information for individual primarily responsible for day-to-day WVA compliance) 
1. First Name 
2. Last Name 
3. Position 
4. Phone 
5. Fax 
6. Email 
7. Mailing Address 

a. Address line 1 
b. Address line 2 
c. City 
d. State 
e. Zip 

 
C.  Secondary Regulatory/Compliance Contact 

(contact information for executive primarily responsible for overall WVA compliance and/or policy 
communications) 
1. First Name 
2. Last Name 
3. Position 
4. Phone 
5. Fax 
6. Email 
7. Mailing Address 

a. Address line 1 
b. Address line 2 
c. City 

 
Meeting Packet Page 15



 

 
 
Washington Vaccine Association Amended and Restated Plan of Operation Page 10 of 10  
 

d. State 
e. Zip 

 
Meeting Packet Page 16



Updated October 20, 2021

Key Performance Indicators

Confidential and Proprietary (C) 2021  
Meeting Packet Page 17



2

Beginning and Ending Cash Balances 13 Month Period

Confidential and Proprietary (C) 2021  
Meeting Packet Page 18



3

DOH Projections vs. Actual Remittances

Confidential and Proprietary (C) 2021  
Meeting Packet Page 19



4

Total Doses, Total Remittances & Remittance Per 
Dose by FY

Confidential and Proprietary (C) 2021  
Meeting Packet Page 20



5

Electronic Remittance and Electronic Funds Transfer 
Automation Progression

Confidential and Proprietary (C) 2021

146 155
167 173 178 180 185 194 194 197 199 201 203

125
135

147 153 158 161 169 178 178 181 184 187 189

91 96
108 111 113 113 120 129 129 132 132 134 134

0

50

100

150

200

250

Oct 2,
2020

Nov 2,
2020

Dec 2,
2020

Jan 2,
2021

Feb 2,
2021

Mar 2,
2021

Apr 2,
2021

May 2,
2021

June 2,
2021

July 2,
2021

Aug 2,
2021

Sep 2,
2021

Oct 2,
2021

# 
of

 P
ay

er
s

Electronic Remittance and Electronic Funds Transfer Automation Progress
Oct 2, 2020 – Oct 2, 2021

Payer Applications Submitted Receiving 835s Receiving EFTs

 
Meeting Packet Page 21



6

Monthly Paper and Electronically Processed DBAs

Confidential and Proprietary (C) 2021

3,765 5,590 6,569 8,103 3,752 2,977 4,231 5,079 3,663
2,744 3,335 3,247 2,863

45,184 101,454 113,484 80,695 41,838 46,288 47,772 52,014 25,128
71,607 44,033 42,062 57,647

92%

95% 95%

91%
92%

94%

92%
91%

87%

96%

93% 93%

95%

82%

84%

86%

88%

90%

92%

94%

96%

98%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21

%
 o

f D
BA

s 
Th

at
 a

re
 E

le
ct

ro
ni

c

%
 o

f P
ap

er
 &

 E
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

D
BA

s P
ro

ce
ss

ed

Volume of Paper and Electronically Processed DBAs*
September 2020 – September 2021

Paper Electronic % Electronic* The average DBA has ~2 vaccines.

 
Meeting Packet Page 22



7

Monthly Correspondence Items Worked

Confidential and Proprietary (C) 2021

457

582

735

1,122

837

603

1,021
858

509 473

591 612

919

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21# 
of

 P
ie

ce
s 

of
 C

or
re

sp
on

de
nc

e 
Re

ce
iv

ed

Monthly Correspondence Items Worked
September 2020 – September 2021

 
Meeting Packet Page 23



8

Monthly Payer Refund Counts and Amounts

Confidential and Proprietary (C) 2021

50

550

1050

1550

2050

2550

3050

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

$120,000

$140,000

$160,000

# 
of

 R
ef

un
d 

Re
qu

es
ts

 P
ro

ce
ss

ed

Re
fu

nd
 A

m
ou

nt
 ($

)

Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21
Amount $30,290 $24,864 $18,806 $23,668 $24,105 $21,528 $32,284 $51,280 $31,244 $25,690 $128,464 $23,060 $16,280
# of Refunds 161 145 116 220 165 178 622 751 197 130 2,457 121 137

Monthly Payer Refund Counts and Amounts Funded
September 2020 – September 2021

 
Meeting Packet Page 24



9

Monthly Receipts by Remittance Type and % EFT 
Receipts

Confidential and Proprietary (C) 2021

93% 95% 95%

61%

93% 93% 94% 95% 93% 95% 95% 93% 96%

$0.45 $0.37 $0.39

$3.98

$0.33 $0.35

$0.47 $0.32 $0.35 $0.33 $0.28 $0.42 $0.35

$6.04
$6.53

$7.21

$6.32

$4.18 $4.85

$7.80

$5.91

$4.49

$6.51

$5.63
$6.04

$8.24

$6.49
$6.90

$7.60

$10.30

$4.51
$5.20

$8.28

$6.24

$4.84

$6.83

$5.91
$6.46

$8.59

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

$0.00

$2.00

$4.00

$6.00

$8.00

$10.00

$12.00

Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21

%
 o

f R
ec

ei
pt

s T
ha

t a
re

 E
le

ct
ro

ni
c

To
ta

l R
ec

ei
pt

s (
$ 

M
ill

io
ns

)

Receipts by Remittance Type and % EFT Receipts
September 2020 – September 2021

($ millions)

% EFT Receipts Cash Receipts EFT Receipts All Receipts

 
Meeting Packet Page 25



10 Confidential and Proprietary (C) 2021

228
226

87
88

72
75

60
51
41

57
51

35
27

22
34

35

22
88
30

13
17

11
18

10
8

17
7

30
13

38
23

28

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Jun-20
Jul-20

Aug-20
Sep-20
Oct-20

Nov-20
Dec-20
Jan-21
Feb-21
Mar-21
Apr-21

May-21
Jun-21
Jul-21

Aug-21
Sep-21

# and % of Website Hits

Partner Referral Traffic

OneHealthPort Referrals Other Referrals

235
309
261

332
57

307
375
359
366

523
469

741
797

374
378

309
374

391

81
286

233
390

39
93

112
108

100
118

87
136

134
581

167
260

126
121

30
13

21
19

12
31

38
32

35
48

39
43

38
138

44
36

32
56

543
149

80
144

11
65

98
99
79

198
97

49
149

205
93

176
122

166

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Apr-20
May-20
Jun-20
Jul-20

Aug-20
Sep-20
Oct-20

Nov-20
Dec-20
Jan-21
Feb-21
Mar-21
Apr-21

May-21
Jun-21
Jul-21

Aug-21
Sep-21

# and % of Website Hits

Landing Pages

Home Page Assessment Grid Page Assessment Guide Other

 
Meeting Packet Page 26


	00. 2021-10-28 DRAFT Operations Committee Meeting Agenda_FINAL
	01. 2021-10-28 DRAFT WVA Operations Committee Proposed Form of Votes
	Items under Agenda Section 2:
	To approve April 29, 2021 meeting minutes. 
	VOTED:
	[To approved April 29, 2021 meeting with the changes suggested at the meeting.]
	Items under Agenda Section 3:
	To approve changes to the Operations Committee Charter. 
	VOTED:
	[To approve changes to the Operations Committee Charter with the additional changes suggested at the meeting.]

	02.a. 2021-04-29 WVA Operations Minutes_v3JZ_clean
	03.a. Draft - WVA Operations Committee Charter JZ_PM v4
	03.b. WVA_Plan_of_Operation_signed_09.20.2021
	03.c. 2020-21 Operations KPIs_10.18.2021
	Slide Number 1
	Beginning and Ending Cash Balances 13 Month Period�
	DOH Projections vs. Actual Remittances
	Total Doses, Total Remittances & Remittance Per Dose by FY
	Electronic Remittance and Electronic Funds Transfer Automation Progression�
	Monthly Paper and Electronically Processed DBAs�
	Monthly Correspondence Items Worked
	Monthly Payer Refund Counts and Amounts�
	Monthly Receipts by Remittance Type and % EFT Receipts
	Slide Number 10




